#### STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

I.

I, Gilda H. Davis, Employee, fully vested and tenured in the Biloxi Public School District was injured on the job at Beauvoir Elementary School, Biloxi Public School District on May 26, 2004, Refer to Appeal Record Tab 6, EXHIBIT -D, Page 136, Family Practice Clinic, Keesler AFB, Ms QUOTE: SCHOOL/WORK ABSENCE EXCUSE (INJURED ON THE JOB ON MAY 26, 2004, WAS TAKEN FROM BEAUVOIR ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TO THE HOSPITAL ON MAY 26, 2004). Employee, Gilda H. Davis did file the accident Report with the Biloxi Public School District, through the principal, Susan Brand and through the Payroll and Insurance Department, Ms. Seymour.

#### II.

#### **EVIDENTIARY SUPPORT (GENUINE ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT)**

In support of this Motion, The Plaintiff Gilda H. Davis and Joseph Davis, Jr., Plaintiff, Pro Se, refers the Court to the Attached Affidavit in Support of Plaintiff's Motion For Summary Judgment and the following Exhibits (Genuine Issue(s) of Material Facts.

A. Complaint, Gilda H. Davis and Joseph Davis Jr. verses Biloxi Public School District et al. Case NumberD2402-07-00342, In The County Court of Harrison County, Second Judicial District, Biloxi, Mississippi, submitted on May 25, 2007, Filed/Stamped May 30, 2007, by Lisa Boudreaux, Clerk of County Clerk, a copy which is attached hereto Exhibit "A". (See Record Excerpts)

B. Affidavit of Gilda H. Davis and Affidavit of Joseph Davis, Jr., Filed/ Stamped In the County Court of Harrison County Mississippi on August 28, 2007, copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit "B". (See Record Excerpts) 1

C. Non-Renewal letter dated April 29, 2004 to Employee of the Biloxi Public School District, Gilda H. Davis, signed by Robert W. Bowles, Deputy Superintendent, Biloxi Public Schools. (Plaintiff Gilda H. Davis was injured on the job at Beauvoir Elementary School on May 26, 2004), a copy which is attached hereto as Exhibit "C". (See Record Excerpts)

D. Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis, Injury on the Job, Beauvoir Elementary School, Biloxi Public School District, seen in the Family Practice Clinic, Keesler AFB, Ms, May 26, 2004, Excused from work May 26<sup>th</sup> and May 27, 2004, due to back injuries, a copy which is attached hereto as Exhibit "D". (See Record Excerpts)

E. Keesler Medical Center, Radiologic Examination Report, Exam Date May 26, 2004, @ 1504, Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis (patient) injured on the job, Beauvoir Elementary School (May 26, 2004). (See Record Excerpts)

Keesler Medical Center, Radiologic Examination Report, Exam Date June 8, 2004, @

1430, Plaintiff Gilda H. Davis, (patient) injured on the job, at Beauvoir Elementary School (May

# 26, 2004). (See Record Excerpts)

Physical Therapy Consultation, Emergency Room/Family Practice, June 29, 2004, from injury on the job, at Beauvoir Elementary School (May 26, 2004).

Physical Therapy Consultation - Continuation Sheet

July 8, 2004, 0800

July 13, 2004, 0800

July 15, 2004, @ 0830

Summary of Exercise - July 1, 2004

Copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit "E". (See Record Excerpts)

F. American Fidelity Assurance Company, Letter dated July 23, 2001, Gilda Davis, Hospital Gap Plan Policy - Customer #2622318, Accident Benefit NOT PAID by American Fidelity Assurance Company, even though all claims were filed by Plaintiff through the Biloxi Public School District (Payroll and Insurance Office) and the American Fidelity Assurance Company, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "F". (See Record Excerpts)

G. Office of Social Security PEBES Online Response, for Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis, Plaintiff, Reflecting Earning for use in Social Security Computation from May 26, 2004 to June 17, 2008, the Plaintiff Gilda H. Davis, incurred \$60, 447.00 loss in earnings in Social Security Benefits, copies of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "G". (See Record Excerpts)

H. State and School Employees' Health Insurance Plan - Continuation Coverage Form, Gilda H. Davis, Employee, Name of Employer, Biloxi Public Schools, date Employee, Gilda H. Davis was notified by Biloxi Public Schools, June 23, 2004. Continuation Coverage will end November 30, 2005. (State and School Employees' Health Insurance Plan - Continuation Coverage Form and a Copy of the envelope is affix, postmark June 25, 2004) copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit "H". (See Record Excerpts)

I. Termination/Separation/Resignation/Re-employment-Classified Employees Biloxi Public School District Policy - Adopted June 14, 2005, Policy GCNA 3 Pages, copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit "I". (See Record Excerpts)

NOTE:

THE BILOXI PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY, GCNA, WAS ADOPTED AFTER THE NO JUST CAUSE TERMINATION (NON-RENEWAL) OF PLAINTIFF GILDA H. DAVIS.

3

J. Motion For Plaintiff's Request For Trial By Jury, Gilda H. Davis and Joseph Davis, Jr., verses Biloxi Public School District et al. Cause Number D2402-07-00342, In the County Court of Harrison County, Biloxi, Mississippi filed a Motion for Trial By Jury, Filed/Stamped January 26, 2008, (The Motion is still Opened and has not been ruled upon), copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit "J". (See Record Excerpts)

### III.

The most compelling issue(s) that the lower court(s) have over looked is the issue of **Jurisdiction** of this case and **the Constitutionality Question**.

In that the Federal Court(s) has Jurisdiction over the unconstitutional violation of 42 U.S.C.A. Section , 1983, Civil Rights "Under Color of the Law". Also, The Federal Court(s) have Jurisdiction over Human Rights, pursuant to the Ninth (9<sup>th</sup>) Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America. (To include the 13<sup>th</sup> and 14<sup>th</sup> Amendment to The Constitution of The United States of America). The Plaintiff(s) are invoking these Constitutional Rights.

The question of the constitutionality of the State Statue,§37-9-101 Long Title, (and Short Title), Mississippi Employee Education Procedures Law (MEEPL), by being vested with Seniority and vested with Tenure protections cognizable by Law and Genuine Issues of Material Facts that is filed in this Complaint.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

I, Appellant/Employee Gilda H. Davis, Pro Se, was inured on the job, while in the employment of the Biloxi Public School District, I have not to this date been compensated by worker Compensation for my injury on the job (at work) on May 26, 2004. This injury prevented my drawing unemployment compensation, Please refer to Cited case TAB 2, Bonnie Harvey, Appellant v. Stone County School District, Appellee No. 2002-CA-01777-COA Court of Appeals of Mississippi, 862 So. 2d 545; 203 Miss. App. Lexis 938, the case was reversed and remanded, in favor of Appellant Bonnie Harvey, Pro Se who was injured. The Genuine Issues of Material fact in the Appellant/Employee, Gilda H. Davis, Pro Se and the Relevant Evidence all proves the merit of this case, as noted in the Summary Judgment filed in the County Court, that Judge Gaston H. Hewes, Jr. Arbitrary and capriciously dismissed.

Based upon the above cited law and the evidence this case does have merit and the Appellant/Employee Gilda H. Davis, Pro Se, was injured on the job (at work) and is therefore, due relief and compensation for injuries sustained on the job and damages from the Biloxi Public School her employer.

### STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On May 26, 2004, at Beauvoir Elementary School, Biloxi Public School District, Biloxi, Mississippi, in the school gymnasium, Coach Jim Taylor, Supervisor of Employee Gilda H. Davis, (Plaintiff), did order employee, Gilda H. Davis to open (pull up the flap/door) under the stage where the rolling carts containing the two (2) rows of metal folding chairs were stored and pull out the carts (each cart holds approximately 30 or more metal folding chairs) and set them (the chairs) up in the gymnasium. While backing out the Plaintiff Gilda H. Davis slipped and fell, holding on to the cart it rolled over her lower legs (pinning her under the cart). The Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis stopped it from going any further, as she was laying on the floor she felt pain in her side, back and legs. Coach Taylor came over and asked if the Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis was OK? And he removed the cart from over her and proceeded to ask her how she felt? Gilda H. Davis, Plaintiff responded that her side, back and legs were hurting her. Coach Taylor called someone to help and the Plaintiff was taken to Keesler Medical Center, Keesler Air Force Base, Biloxi, Mississippi. (Refer to Appeal Record TAB 6, page 135, Exhibit "D").

Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis, filed the accident report with the Biloxi Public School District, through the Principal, Susan Brand and through the Payroll and Insurance Department, Ms. Seymour. Only, correspondence received from the Biloxi Public School District and Beauvoir Elementary School was the State and School Employees' Health Insurance Plan - Continuation Coverage Form, Gilda H. Davis, Employee, Name of Employer, Biloxi Public Schools, date employee, Gilda H. Davis, was notified by Biloxi Public Schools, June 23, 2004. Continuation Coverage will end November 30, 2005. (State and School Employees' Health Insurance Plan - Continuation Coverage Form and a copy of the envelope is affix, postmark June 25, 2004), Please refer to Appeal Record TAB 7, Page 151Exhibit "H".

The Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis, was injured on the job, at Beauvior Elementary School, Biloxi Public School District, seen in the Emergency and Family Practice Clinic, Keesler Medical Center, Keesler Air Force Base Biloxi, Mississippi on May 26, 2004, and Excused from work May 26, 2004 and May 27, 2004, due to back injuries, a copy is attached hereto as Please refer to , Exhibit "D". (See Record Excerpts)

Please refer to, Exhibit "E", (See Record Excerpts) Keesler Medical Center, Radiologic Examination Report, Exam Date, May 26, 2004, @ 1504, Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis (patient) injured on the job, Beauvoir Elementary School (May 26, 2004).

Also, Physical Therapy Consultation, Emergency Room/Family Practice, June 29, 2004, from injury on the job, at Beauvoir Elementary School (May 26, 2004). Physical Therapy Consultation sheet shows Physical Therapy provided on July 8, 2004, 0800, July 13, 2004, 0800, and July 15, 2004, 0830 hours.

The Plaintiff Gilda H. Davis, purchased an Insurance Policy through the Biloxi Public School District and it was being deducted from her salary through payroll deduction. Please refer to Appeal Record, Exhibit "F". (See Record Excerpts). American Fidelity Assurance Company, Letter dated July 23, 2001, Gilda H. Davis Hospital Gap Plan Policy - Customer #2622318, Accident Benefit NOT PAID or responded to by American Fidelity Assurance Company, even though all claims with copies of Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis' medical records were filed by Plaintiff through the Biloxi Public School District (Payroll and Insurance Office) and the Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis also, filed for payment of claims with American Fidelity Assurance Company with no response from either of the two entitics.

. . .

The Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis was non-renewed with no just cause in violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act and incurred a loss in Social Security Computable Earnings from May 26, 2004 to June 17, 2008 of \$60,447.00 loss in earnings in Social Security Benefits, Please refer to Appeal Record, Exhibit "G". (See Record Excerpts)

The Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis has been deprived of creditable service §25-11-109 under the Statues and Session Law, Title 25 Public Officer and Employees; Public Records Chapter 11 Social Security and Public Employees' Retirement and Disability Benefits.

The Plaintiff Gilda H. Davis, being a member of the Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi as outlined and defined in Statues and Session Law 25-11-103, as established and described in Section 25-11-101, and filling a position of "State Service" as provided for by Section 25-11-105(f), was unjustly and unlawfully deprived of her continued employment by the Biloxi Public School District non renewal of her contract (Letter of Intent), please refer to, Appeal Record, Exhibit C, (See Record Excerpts) by the Biloxi Public School District's arbitrary and capricious "withdrawal from service" or "termination from service" which is contrary to 25-11-105(f). The Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis was deprived of payment of her unemployment Benefits under the §71-5-501 of the Mississippi Department of Employment Security Law, as defined in Section 71-5-11(I)(15)(g), irrespective of when performed. Section 71-5-355 of the Mississippi Department of Employment Security Law provides that benefits paid to an eligible individual shall be charged against the experience rating record of the base period employer(s) unless the circumstances of the case afford the employer the right to be given a non-charge.

The Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis has been denied her right to payment of her Unemployment Benefits due to the "No Just Cause" non-renewal of her employment intent letter (contract).

Also, the Plaintiff Gilda H. Davis, is the most SENIOR EMPLOYEE IN THE BILOXI PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT.

Therefore, the Biloxi Public School District is in violation of Policy GCNA Please refer to, Exhibit "I", (See Record Excerpts) which does not apply to this civil action since it was adopted after the unjust and unlawful non-renewal of the Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis. Biloxi Public School District did not adopt the GCNA

Termination/Separation/Resignation/Reemployment -Classified Employees policy until June 14, 2005. Please refer to, Exhibit "I". (See Record Excerpts)

Even if the Biloxi Public School District and its Employees(Defendants named in the Complaint) Please refer to, Appeal Record, Exhibit "A", (See Record Excerpts) are found to be discretionary in their actions (U. S. v Gaubert, 499 U. S. 315, 111 S. CT. 1267, 113 L.Ed.2d 335 (`1991), ordinary care was not used, based upon the Facts and the Evidentiary Support (Genuine Issues of Material Fact) in Exhibits (A - J), Please refer to the Record Excerpts, "EXHIBITS A THROUGH J" submitted by the Plaintiffs Gilda H. Davis and Joseph Davis Jr. In Support of the Appellant Brief of Plaintiff Gilda H. Davis.

- -

Ordinary care was not used by the Biloxi Public School District and it employees in performance of their ministerial duty and their lack of policy. Biloxi Public School District did not adopt the GCNA Termination/Separation/Resignation/Reemployment - Classified Employees policy until June 14, 2005. Stewart Ex Rel. Womack v City of Jackson, 804 So.2d 1041, 1047 (¶12) (Miss.202) and Lefore County v. Givens, 754 So.2d 1223, 1227 (¶9) (Miss.2000).

#### **ARGUMENT/SUMMARY ARGUMENT**

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES of the tenured employee, Gilda H. Davis are all supported by Relevant Evidence as required by Rule 401 Relevant Evidence and supported

by notarized affidavit of Gilda H. Davis and notarized affidavit of Joseph Davis, Jr.,

- --

Filed/Stamped In the County Court of Harrison County Mississippi, on August 28, 2007.

I.

The Trial Court erred in dismissing the claims of Gilda H. Davis as barred under the applicable statue of limitation. Lawyer Edward F. Donovan assertions and opinions are incorrect on the 3 year Statue of Limitation ruling based upon fact and Relevant Evidence in employee, Gilda H. Davis', Appellant's Brief (the time from the filing of the Complaint May 25, 2007 to the time of employee, Gilda H. Davis, termination by the Biloxi Public School District May 31, 2007 is 359 days, this is 6 days less than the 3 years filing requirement. "Under Mississippi law, cause of action does not accrue until injury occurs. Matter of Wheeler C. A. 5 (Miss.) 1998 137 F. 3d 299."

I, Gilda H. Davis, employee, fully vested and tenured in the Biloxi Public School District was injured on the job at Beauvoir Elementary School, Biloxi Public School District on May 26, 2004, Refer to, EXHIBIT- D, (See Record Excerpts), Family Practice Clinic, Keesler Air Force Base Mississippi. QUOTE: SCHOOL/WORK ABSENCE EXCUSE (INJURED ON THE JOB ON MAY 26, 2004, WAS TAKEN FROM BEAUVOIR ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TO THE HOSPITAL AT KEESLER AFB, MISSISSIPPI LOCATED IN BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, ON MAY 26, 2004. Employee, Gilda H. Davis did file the Accident Report, with the Biloxi Public School District , through the principal, Susan Brand and through the Payroll and Insurance Department, Ms. Seymour.

I, Gilda H. Davis, tenured employee, of Beauvoir Elementary School, Biloxi Public School District was terminated on May 31, 2004. REPEAT MAY 31, 2004.

PLEASE REFER TO State and School Employees' Health Insurance Plan (See Appellants' Record Excerpts, EXHIBIT H.

The Appellants Filed the Complaint on May 25, 2007, it was not put into the computer by the clerk until May 30, 2007, Please Refer to the Appellants Brief, Filed Stamped, October 12, 2009, page 12, Complaint, Respectfully Submitted, May 25, 2007 and given to Ms Lisa Boudreaux, Clerk of County Clerk, Harrison County Second Judicial District, Mississippi, Biloxi , Mississippi, on that day, Friday May 25, 2007, (May 28, 2007, Monday, was Memorial Day a Holiday) Ms. Lisa Boudreaux, stamped it on May 30, 2007. I, GILDA H. DAVIS, EMPLOYEE AT BEAUVOIR ELEMENTARY SCHOOL IN THE BILOXI PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT WAS NOT TERMINATED UNTIL MAY 31, 2004. In Accordance with Mississippi code ann. §15-1-49, Mississippi three year provided by the Mississippi Statue, this Limitations period starts to run when plaintiff becomes aware or has sufficient information to know that he or she suffered an injury. Cuvillier v. Taylor ©. A. 5 (Miss.) 2007 503 F.3d 397.

#### III.

Therefore, the court erred in that the claims are not barred under the applicable statue of limitation, the Record shows that the time is 359 days (three hundred and fiftynine days (less than the 3 year statue of limitation) this is a proven fact that the Relevant Evidence and the Genuine Issues of Material Fact of the Appellants submitted by Notarized Exhibits A thru J, supports the case in Fact and Law.

#### IV.

The following cited referenced Federal and State cases appropriately supports the Plaintiff, Gilda H. Davis, case in substantiated case settled Law.

"The appropriate statue of limitations for employee's claim of wrongful termination of his/her employment which was pursuant to written contract was the three-year catch-all statue of limitations under Mississippi, not the one-year period for claims based on oral contract or the one year period for actions for failure to employ. Robinson v. Coastal Family Health Center, Inc. (S.D. Miss. 1990) 756 F. Supp. 958." "In choosing actions applicable state statue of limitations to apply to action brought under civil rights statue, court must ground its decision on the basis of which statue will best effectuate the congressional policies underlying the civil rights statue. Shaw v. McCorkel C. A.5 (Miss) 1976) 537 F. 2d 1289."

"In Mississippi cause of action begins to run from the time of the injury and not from the time of its discovery. Wilson v. Retail CreditCo. (S. D. Miss. 1971) 325 F. Supp. 460, affirmed 457 F. 2d 1406."

"Under Mississippi law discovery rule, the would be plaintiff need not know each precision each detail of breach, causation, and damages, but merely enough to make a plain statement of the case backed by evidence sufficient to survive a summary judgment motion. First Trust Nat. Ass'n v First Nat. Bank of Commerce C. A. 5 (Miss.) 2000) 220 F. 3d 331."

"General six-year statue of limitations in Mississippi was applicable to suit by laid off employee against employer and union claiming racial discrimination. Heath v. D. H. Baldwin Co. (N. D. Miss. 1977) 477 F. Supp. 495."

"Cause of action accrues, for statue of limitations purposes, when plaintiff becomes aware he/she has suffered an injury or has sufficient information to know that he/she has been injured. A-1 By D-2 v. Molpus(S. D. Miss. 1995) 906 F. Supp. 275."

Again, "Under Mississippi Law, cause of action does not accrue until injury occurs. Matter of Wheeler C. A. 5 (Miss) 1998 137 F. 3d 299."

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