IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

CASE NO. 2010-CA-00338

GILDA H. DAVIS AND JOSEPH DAVIS, JR.

PLAINTIFFS/APPELLANTS

VS.

BILOXI PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT, et al.

DEFENDANTS/APPELLEES

On Appeal from the Circuit Court of Harrison County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District Civil Action No. A2402-2009-00035

BRIEF OF APPELLEES AND REQUEST FOR DAMAGES AND COSTS PURSUANT TO Miss. R. App. P. 38

Oral Argument Not Requested

Matthew T. Vitart - Bar

DANIEL COKER HORTON & BELL, P.A.

4400 Old Canton Road, Suite 400

Post Office Box 1084

Jackson, Mississippi 39215-1084

Telephone: (601) 969-7607

Facsimile: (601) 969-1116

Edward F. Donovan - Bar
ATTORNEY AT LAW

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

Pursuant to Miss. R. Civ. P. 56 (c), summary judgment is appropriate, "if the pleadings, depositions and answers to interrogatories and admissions on file, together with affidavits, if any, show there is no genuine issue as to any material fact . . . the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law." *Id*. The presence of a hundred contested issues of fact will not prevent summary judgment where there is no genuine dispute regarding material issues of fact. *Shaw v*.

Burchfield, 481 So.2d 247, 252 (Miss. 1985). "Factual disputes that are irrelevant or unnecessary will not be counted." *Id.* A fact is "material" if it "tends to resolve any of the issues properly raised by the parties," *Morgan v. City of Ruleville*, 627 So.2d 275, 277 (Miss. 1993), and a dispute over a material fact is "genuine" only if the evidence is such that "reasonable minds in a jury could differ on such an issue." *Strantz v. Pinion*, 652 So.2d 738, 741 (Miss. 1995).

If the moving party's evidence satisfies the initial burden, the adverse party must produce "significant probative evidence showing that there are indeed genuine issues for trial." *Price v. Purdue Pharma Co.*, 920 So. 2d 479, 485 (Miss. 2006) (emphasis added). The party opposing the motion must be diligent and may not rest upon mere allegations or denials in the pleadings, but must set forth specific facts showing there are genuine issues for trial. *Richmond v. Benchmark Constr. Corp.*, 692 So. 2d 60, 61 (Miss. 1997). If the nonmoving party fails to set forth specific facts to rebut the showing that no genuine issues of material fact exist, summary judgment should be entered in the moving party's favor. *Coleman Powermate, Inc. v. Rheem Mfg. Co.*, 880 So.2d 329 (Miss. 2004).

B. UNDER MISS. R. APP. P. 28, THIS COURT SHOULD NOT CONSIDER THIS APPEAL ANY FURTHER BECAUSE APPELLANTS FAILED TO CLEARLY IDENTIFY ANY ISSUES.

Pursuant to Mississippi Rule of Appellate Procedure 28, this Court is not required to and should not further consider this appeal because Appellants' brief's "statement of the issues" section does not clearly identify a single issue for appeal nor does it specifically allege any reversible error by the trial court. Rather, Appellants' "statement of the issues" is an incoherent, disjointed rambling of unsubstantiated conclusory factual allegations. (Appellants' Br. at 1). How can Appellees be expected to effectively respond when Appellants' brief gives them no idea what

needs to be responded too? Or, perhaps the better question is, how can this Court be expected to guess why an appellant is appealing, or worse, be expected to play lawyer for and appellant and raise issues on their behalf?

When an appellant's brief's "statement of the issues" fails to clearly identify any issue, the trial court's decision should be affirmed pursuant to Miss. R. App. P. 28. See Giles v. Stokes, 988 So. 2d 926, 929 (Miss. Ct. App. 2008) ("[Appellant] does not list this dismissal as error under his statement of issues. Accordingly, the review of such claims is not proper for this appeal and is waived.") (citing Davis v. J.C. Penney Co., 881 So. 2d 969, 970 (Miss. Ct. App. 2004)) (emphasis added); Giuffria v. Concannon, 851 So. 2d 436 (Miss. Ct. App. 2003); King v. State, 857 So. 2d 702 (Miss. 2003); Jones v. Howell, 827 So. 2d 691 (Miss. 2002).

This rule especially applies to Joseph and Gilda Davis, because this Court has provided them personalized notice of the severe consequences of failing to identify issues for appeal. This is not the first time Joseph Davis, Jr. has ignored Rule 28's mandates. In Joseph Davis, Jr. v. J.C. Penney Company, Inc., Joseph Davis Jr. (pro se) sued J.C. Penneys after he was convicted of resisting arrest and trespassing on their Biloxi premises apparently following a ruckus he caused while returning an item. 881 So. 2d 969 (Miss. Ct. App. 2004). The circuit court granted J.C. Penney's motion for summary judgment and sanctions against Davis. Id. at 970. Davis appealed. Id. The Mississippi Court of Appeals affirmed and instructed Mr. Davis that "Pursuant to Mississippi Rule of Appellate Procedure 28, an appellant's brief must contain the following: (1) a certificate of interested persons, (2) tables, (3) a statement of the issues, (4) a statement of the case, (5) a summary of the argument, (6) an argument, and (7) a conclusion." Id. (emphasis added). The Court held that they were "not required to further consider [Mr. Davis'] appeal"

because the appellant's brief submitted by Davis did not clearly identify any issues and thus failed to comply with M.R.A.P. 28. Id..⁷ (emphasis added) The Court noted the well-settled rule: "In the absence of clearly identified issues, there is nothing for this Court to consider or address in an appeal." Id. (citing Giuffria v. Concannon, 851 So. 2d 436 (Miss. Ct. App. 2003) ("The prose brief... does not state any specific issues for consideration and fails to cite to any legal authority. On this basis alone, the Court is not required to further consider this appeal.) (emphasis added)).

The dispositive effect of a Rule 28 violation makes sense because these Appellees have been forced to spend a significant amount of time and money in responding to this appeal without even being able to confidently identify what issues they need to respond too. Also worth noting, is the waste of judicial resources mounting even now.

Joseph and Gildas' "statement of the issues" again does not clearly identify a single issue or point of reversible error. Therefore, this Court should refuse to further consider this appeal and affirm the Circuit Court's decision for the same reason that the Court of Appeals refused to consider Mr. Davis' appeal against J.C. Penneys six years ago.

- C. THE CIRCUIT COURT PROPERLY AFFIRMED THE COUNTY COURT'S DISMISSAL OF GILDA H. DAVIS' CLAIMS AS A MATTER OF LAW
 - 1. Gilda Davis' Employment Related Claims Are Barred under the Applicable Statutes of Limitation
 - a. MISS. CODE ANN. § 15-1-49

⁷ The Court dismissed Davis' appeal even though he told the court "he would make the Court aware of his issues upon oral argument." *Id*.

Gilda Davis received a non-renewal of employment notice letter on April 29, 2004. (Appellees R. Tabs 1 and 2). The Complaint asserts several causes of action predicated on that non-renewal; mainly violations of 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and general deprivation constitutional rights. *Id.* Appellants' Complaint and their current brief confirm that this action was commenced *more than* three years later. (Appellants' Br. 1) Thus, Mrs. Davis' termination related claims require dismissal as they are barred by the applicable statutes of limitation.

The U.S. Supreme Court has held that the forum state's personal-injury statute of limitations should be applied to all 42 U.S.C. § 1983 claims. Wilson v. Garcia, 471 U.S. 261, 280 (1985). Therefore, Mississippi's general three-year statute of limitations, § 15-1-49, is applicable to the § 1983 claims herein. Davis v. Biloxi Pub. Sch. Dist., 43 So. 3d 1135, 1137 (Miss. Ct. App. 2009) (The Court of Appeals giving Mr. Davis personalized instructions that "the statute limitations for section 1983 claims in Mississippi is three years."); See also Hubbard v. Miss. Conf. of the United Methodist Church, 138 F. Supp. 2d 780, 782 (S.D. Miss. 2001) (citing Thomas v. City of New Albany, 901 F.2d 476, 476 (5th Cir. 1990)). Mississippi Code Annotated § 15-1-49 provides the following:

- § 15-1-49. Limitations applicable to actions not otherwise specifically provided for.
- (1) All actions for which no other period of limitation is prescribed shall be commenced within three (3) years next after the cause of such action accrued, and not after.

While state law determines the limitations period for § 1983 claims, federal law determines when a § 1983 cause of action accrues. See Hitt v. Connell, 301 F.3d 240, 246 (5th Cir. 2002); Piotrowski v. City of Houston, 237 F.3d 567, 580 (5th Cir. 2001), cert. denied, 534 U.S. 820, 122 S. Ct. 53, 151 L. Ed. 2d 23 (2001); Burns v. Harris County Bail Bond Bd., 139 F.3d 513, 518

(5th Cir. 1998); *Price v. Jefferson County*, 470 F. Supp. 2d 665, 681 (E.D. Tex. 2006). In *Chardon v. Fernandez*, the U.S. Supreme Court clearly established that a § 1983 cause of action accrues when the plaintiff *receives notice of termination*, not when the employment actually terminates. 454 U.S. 6, 7-8 (1981).

According to federal law, the statute of limitations for Ms. Davis' § 1983 and constitutional rights claims accrued/began to run on April 29, 2004 when she admittedly received the non-renewal notice. (Appellants' Br. at 2); (Appellees' R. Tab 2). Applying Mississippi's three year limitation statute, the time within which to file her § 1983 claim expired on or about April 29, 2007, three years from the non-renewal notice. Ms. Davis, however, admits she waited until May 30, 2007, 31 days after the expiration of the statute to file the instant § 1983 action. Because Ms. Davis' § 1983 and constitutional claims were untimely, the Circuit Court was correct when it affirmed the County Court's dismissal of these claims as a matter of law.

b. MISS. CODE ANN. § 11-46-11

In addition to her claims for relief under § 1983, Ms. Davis alleged various Mississippi state law tort claims against these governmental entity Appellees⁹. As such, all of those claims were controlled by, and required strict compliance with, the Mississippi Tort Claims Act. Miss. Code Ann. § 11-46-1 et seq.

⁸ For the first time in this litigation Appellants, in their brief, allege that "The Appellants filed the complaint on May 25, 2007, it was not put into the computer by the clerk until May 30, 2007..." (Appellants' Br. at 12). Appellants provide no evidence to support this new assertion, but even if that was true the Complaint is still time barred since May 25, 2007 is 26 days too late.

⁹ School districts are included as governmental entities under this statute. Miss. Code Ann. § 11-46-1(I).

The MTCA provides that "all actions brought under the provisions of this chapter shall be commenced within one (1) year next after the date of the tortious, wrongful or otherwise actionable conduct on which the liability phase of the action is based, and not after . . . "10 MISS. CODE ANN. § 11-46-11(3). A cause of action has been held to accrue when the alleged tortious conduct causing the injury occurs. *Black v. Ansah*, 876 So. 2d 395, 398 (Miss. Ct. App. 2003) (applying MISS. CODE ANN. § 11-46-11(3) in a wrongful termination action). In *Black*, the Mississippi Court of Appeals held that the plaintiff, who was provided notice of non-renewal of her contract for employment one year before her employment was to terminate, accrued at the time of the notice, not at the time of termination. *Id.* at 400. *See also Stevens v. City of Jackson*, 2010 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 31657 (S.D. Miss. Mar. 30, 2010) (applying *Black* in federal district court to dismiss state tort claims as time barred per the MTCA statute of limitation).

Ms. Davis' employment related state tort claims under the MTCA accrued on April 29, 2004 when she received the non-renewal notice. Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 11-46-11, the statute of limitation expired on or about April 29, 2005; *i.e.*, one year from her non-renewal notice. Ms. Davis, however, waited until May 30, 2007, over two years after the MTCA statute of limitation expired, to file the underlying action. Because Ms. Davis' state law tort claims against the School District were untimely under Miss. Code Ann. § 11-46-11, the Circuit Court properly affirmed the County Court's dismissal of Ms. Davis' state tort law claims as a matter of law.

¹⁰ The 90 day notice requirement described in § 11-46-11(1) will toll the one year limitations period for 95 days. The application of this section is of no consequence to this action given that plaintiff's lawsuit was filed over 170 days after the running of the one-year statute. Furthermore, plaintiff herein did not comply with said 90 day notice provision to warrant any tolling.

2. Gilda Davis' On-the-Job Injury Claims Are Barred Under the Mississippi Workers' Compensation Act and/or the Mississippi Tort Claims Act.

Although Ms. Davis' work-site injury claims are not properly before this Court on appellate review since they were not pleaded in her Complaint, the Appellees, however, will address such claims and demonstrate that they fail as a matter of law under the Mississippi Workers' Compensation Act and Mississippi Tort Claims Act.

a. Miss. Code Ann. § 71-3-9

It is well established that the Mississippi Workers' Compensation Act is the exclusive remedy for an employee injured while acting in the scope and course of his employment. MISS. CODE ANN. § 71-3-9 (Rev. 2000). Section 71-3-9 provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

§ 71-3-9 Exclusiveness of liability

The liability of an employer to pay compensation shall be exclusive and in place of all other liability of such employer to the employee, his legal representative, husband or wife, parents, dependents, next-of-kin, and anyone otherwise entitled to recover damages at common law or otherwise from such employer on account of such injury or death.

Accordingly, because Ms. Davis' brief (Appellants' Br. at 6) confirms she was acting in the course and scope of her employment when she was allegedly injured on May 26, 2004, and her injuries were not the result of an intentional tort, such injuries were compensable under the MWCA and the exclusivity provision of the MWCA bars any tort claims she may assert against the School District.

b. MISS. CODE ANN. § 71-3-35

In addition to being barred by the exclusivity provision under the MWCA, even if Ms. Davis chooses to pursue a worker's compensation through the Mississippi Workers' Compensation Commission, her claims will be time barred under the MWCA. Section 71-3-35 (1) of the MWCA provides as follows:

71-3-35 Limitation. No claim for compensation shall be maintained unless, within thirty (30) days after the occurrence of the injury, actual notice was received by the employer or by an officer, manager, or designated representative of an employer. If no representative has been designated by posters placed in one or more conspicuous places, then notice received by any superior shall be sufficient. Absence of notice shall not bar recovery if it is found that the employer had knowledge of the injury and was not prejudiced by the employee's failure to give notice. Regardless of whether notice was received, if no payment of compensation (other than medical treatment or burial expense) is made and no application for benefits filed with the commission within two years from the date of the injury or death, the right to compensation therefor shall be barred.

(Emphasis added). Ms. Davis' alleged work related injury occurred on May 26, 2004. (Appellants' Br. at 6). As such, she had until no later than, May 26, 2006 to file an application for benefits with the Mississippi Worker's Compensation Commission. On information and belief, no claim for compensation benefits has ever been filed by Ms. Davis regarding her May 26, 2004 work related injury. Accordingly, her worker's compensation claim is time barred.

c. Miss. Code Ann. § 11-46-11

Ms. Davis' non-pleaded work-site injury claims are also barred by the Mississippi Tort Claims Act. Ms. Davis' state tort claims related to her on-the-job injury, to the extent not governed by the Mississippi Workers Compensation Act, fall under the Mississippi Tort Claims Act and accrued on May 26, 2004. Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 11-46-11, the MTCA statute

of limitation expired on May 26, 2005; one year after Gilda's alleged accident. Ms. Davis, however, waited until May 30, 2007, over three years after her accident and over two years after the MTCA statute of limitation expired, to file the underlying action. Because Ms. Davis' unpleaded tort claims against the School District were untimely under MISS. CODE ANN. § 11-46-11, the Circuit Court properly affirmed the County Court's dismissal of Ms. Davis' state tort law claims as a matter of law.

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